
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC

Agenda
Meeting name Licensing Sub-Committee
Date Wednesday, 30 October 2019
Start time 10.00 am
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leics, LE13 1GH
Other information This meeting is open to the public

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are invited to attend the above 
meeting to consider the following items of business.

Edd de Coverly
Chief Executive

Membership

Councillors P. Chandler S. Lumley
P. Posnett MBE M. Steadman

Quorum: 3 Councillors

Meeting enquiries The Licensing Team
Email licensing@melton.gov.uk
Agenda despatched Tuesday, 22 October 2019

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2

No. Item Page No.

1.  ELECTION OF A CHAIR

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.  DECLARATION OF INTEREST 1 - 2

4.  LICENSING ACT 2003: APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF 
PREMISES LICENCE - EUROPEAN MARKET MELTON LIMITED, 
36-42 THORPE END, MELTON MOWBRAY, LE13 1RB

3 - 52



Advice on Members’ Interests
COUNCIL MEETINGS - COMMITTEE MINUTES : DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Interests need not be declared at Full Council in relation to Committee Minutes which do not 
become the subject of debate at Full Council (i.e. Minutes referred to solely on a page by page 
basis when working through the Minutes of each Committee.)

An interest must be declared at Full Council as soon as it becomes apparent that a  relevant 
Committee Minute is to be debated – this applies even if an interest has been declared at 
Committee and is recorded in the Minutes of that Committee.  

PERSONAL AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If the issue being discussed affects you, your family or a close associate more than other 
people in the area, you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest.  You also have a personal  
interest if the issue relates to an interest you must register under paragraph 9 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.

You must state that you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest and the nature of 
your interest.  You may stay, take part and vote in the meeting.

PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If a member of the public, who knows all the relevant facts, would view your personal interest in 
the issue being discussed to be so great that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest and it affects your or the other person or bodies’ financial position or relates to any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration then you must state that you have a 
pecuniary interest, the nature of the interest and you must leave the room*.  You must not 
seek improperly to influence a decision on that matter unless you have previously obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Governance Committee.  

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS
If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, if the interest 
is not already registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting.  You must not 
participate in the discussion or the vote and you must leave the room.

You may not attend a meeting or stay in the room as either an Observer Councillor or *Ward 
Councillor or as a member of the public if you have a pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary 
interest*.  

BIAS 
If you have been involved in an issue in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are 
likely to perceive you to be biased in your judgement of the public interest (bias) then you 
should not take part in the decision-making process; you should leave the room.  You should 
state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part.  You may request 
permission of the Chair to address the meeting prior to leaving the room.  The Chair will need to 
assess whether you have a useful contribution to make or whether complying with this request 
would prejudice the proceedings.  A personal, pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary interest will 
take precedence over bias. 

In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or as 
soon as you are aware of the issue being discussed.*

*There are some exceptions – please refer to paragraphs 3.12(2) and 3.12(3) of the Code of 
Conduct

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003: APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE

European Market Melton Limited, 36-42 THORPE END, MELTON MOWBRAY, LE13 
1RB

1.0 Summary:

1.1 The purpose of this report is for members to consider this report and any evidence 
produced or representations made following receipt of an application to Review a 
Premises License in respect of the premises Licence held by the European Market 
Melton Limited and to determine the application by taking such of the steps set out 
below as the Sub-Committee considers it necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Sub-Committee have regard to the application and 
any relevant representations and determine which of the following steps they 
consider appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to:

a) Take no action;
b) Modify the conditions of the Premises Licence, by altering, omitting 

and or adding to them where relevant; 
c) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the Premises Licence; 
d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor; 
e) Suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding three 

months;
f) Revoke the Premises Licence.

The application should be considered on its merits and any decision should be 
reasonable and proportionate.

Licensing 
Sub-Committee 
Date 30th October 2019

Report of:
Assistant Director for Strategic 
Planning and Regulatory 
Services

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



3.0 Report Detail

3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 came in to force in September 2005. It passed the powers 
to the Local Authority to licence premises for any of the following licensable 
activities :

 The sale by retail of alcohol;
 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club or to the order of a member of 

the club;
 The provision of regulated entertainment; and
 The provision of late night refreshment.

The licensing objectives are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

Each objective is of equal importance. 

There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that the promotion of the four 
objectives is a paramount consideration at all times. However, the legislation also 
supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are vitally important and 
should be principal aims for everyone involved in licensing work.

3.2 Section 51 of the 2003 Act, allows interested persons, and responsible authorities, 
to make representations in favour or against the review of a premises licence. All 
review applications must be determined by a Licensing Committee or Sub-
Committee Hearing.

3.3 Background:

European Supermarket with Premises licence number MMA0262 has held a 
Premises Licence since 2015.  

The License Holder is permitted by the premises licence to provide the following:

Supply of Alcohol
Daily 08:00am to 11:00pm

A copy of the current premises licence is attached at Appendix A.

A plan of the premises is attached at Appendix B.

3.4 Summary of the Application:

On 9 September 2019, the Licensing Authority received a second application from 
Trading Standards to review the Premises Licence for European Market Melton 
Limited following concerns about the business since 2016 in respect of underage 

Page 4



sales, smuggled, non-duty paid, foreign labelled tobacco (“illegal”) and smuggled, 
non duty paid foreign labelled alcohol.  

In addition there are concerns about the failure to uphold the licensing objectives as 
follows:

 Public Safety; and 

 The Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

The application and supporting evidence is attached at Appendix C.

Trading Standards have identified a number of concerns and have seized smuggled 
alcohol from the premises on two occasions.  Trading Standards contend that the 
information and evidence gained demonstrates there is a continuing issue with this 
premises and a disregard fro the law and previous licence review. 

A comprehensive timeline has been provided at pages 4-8 of the application at 
Appendix B.

On the same date the second application for a review was received, Monday 9th 
September 2019, Simon Greensmith Licensing & Compliance Officer for Melton 
Borough Council attended the premises to post blue notices as per Section 51 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. He spoke to the shop assistant who identified himself as 
Hama Ahmad Taha but he was unable to produce the refusals register and did not 
understand what a Personal Licence was as per the conditions attached at a 
previous licence review hearing.  The premises licence holder, Mr Jasim Abdulla 
AMIN, was contacted on his mobile phone but advised Mr Greensmith that he was 
too busy to attend but would come to the Council Offices.  Mr Amin failed to report 
to the Council offices.  Whilst the Officer was present, alcohol was sold in the form 
of a can of lager, contravening the condition of a Personal Licence holder being 
present at all times whilst Licensable activities take place. A representation has 
been submitted by the Licensing Authority and is attached at Appendix D.

A further visit was made on the 11th September 2019 which confirmed the staff still 
had not displayed the blue notice in the shop. The shop worker Mr Taha was 
present again and called someone on his phone identified on the screen as Purza 
Bestun. This person stated that Mr Taha had been trained to sell alcohol in the 
shop, but he did not hold a Personal Licence.  This identified a further breach.

3.5 Relevant Representations:

The application for review was advertised on the premises as required by 
legislation. The required consultation period commenced on Tuesday 10 
September for 28 days ending on Tuesday 8 October 2019. 

During the 28 day representation period, one representation was received from the 
Licensing Authority detailing their concerns as to how the licensing objectives are 
not being upheld by those responsible for the management of the premises.  A copy 
of this representation is attached at Appendix D.

Page 5



3.6 Previous Review Application:

Members should note that this is the second application for a review as the 
Licensing Authority were previously made aware of visits by Trading Standards in 
January 2016 following the sale of illegal tobacco during a failed test purchase.  

At this time the original licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 
Mr Masoud RASHID was listed on the premises licence. A few months later there 
was another complaint and another failed test purchase and the DPS (Mr RASHID) 
was given a warning letter about the sale and possession of illegal tobacco by 
trading standards. 

The original review application followed a timeline of investigation and seizures at 
this premises culminating in a Premises Licence Review hearing on 21 August 
2018.  As a result of that review hearing by the Licensing Sub-Committee it was 
decided:
 

1) To remove the DPS namely Mr Mariwan ALI from the premises licence;

2) To modify the conditions on the premises licence as follows:

(a) That there be a Personal Licence holder present at all times when 
licensable activities are taking place.

(b) That there be a refusal register kept at the premises and be produced on 
demand to Licensing Officers and Police and any other responsible body.

A copy of the decision notice is attached at Appendix E.

3.7 Other Licence Applications:

A number of applications have been received in relation to the licence, namely:

Date Event:
30th October  2015 Application received for Premises Licence by Masoud 

Rashid. He was also the DPS
17th July 2017 Application received for Licence to be transferred and 

DPS changed to Mariwan Ali
5th July 2018 First Premises Licence Review Application received 

from Trading Standards
9th July 2018 Application received to transfer premises licence from 

Mariwan Ali to European Supermarket Melton Ltd. 
Companies house shows Ali and Rashid as directors

21st August 2018 First Licence review hearing
28th August 2018 Application to vary DPS to Mr Hazhar Omar Khudhur
23rd October 2018 Application received to vary DPS to Mahmod Rezgar
3rd December 2018 Application received to transfer licence to European 

Market Melton Ltd To the sole director on Companies 
house being Mr Jasim Abdulla Amin

21st May 2019 Application received to vary DPS to Jasim Amin

9th September 2019 Second Application to Review Premises Licence 
Application received from Trading Standards

Page 6



10th September 
2019

Consultation until 08th October 2019

30th October 2019 Review hearing 

3.8 Policy & Guidance Considerations:

Members must consider all evidence / representations offered at the Sub-
Committee Hearing.   Members are reminded that whenever they make a decision 
under the Licensing Act 2003, they have a duty to act with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives.  

When considering any representations, only those issues relating to the four 
licensing objectives should be considered and appropriate weight given to the 
importance and relevance of each representation.

The application should be considered on its merits and any decision should be 
reasonable and proportionate.

In making any decision, Members must also have regard to the Council’s own 
Statement of Licensing Policy and the Home Office statutory guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 both of which can be found online at:

Policy:

http://www.melton.gov.uk/downloads/file/3903/statement_of_licensing_policy_-
_licensing_act_2003 

Guidance: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-
guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003 

3.9 Other Relevant Considerations:

The Sub-Committee is reminded of its responsibilities under the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 (to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Melton 
Borough) and the Human Rights Act (which guarantees the right to a fair hearing for 
all parties in the determination of their civil rights, and also provides for the 
protection of property, which may include licences in existence, and the protection 
of private and family life) when considering the fair balance between the interests of 
the all parties to this Hearing.  Any decision taken by the Sub-Committee must be 
necessary and proportionate to the objectives being pursued. 

Members are reminded that whenever they make a decision under the Licensing 
Act 2003, they have a duty to act with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.  
When considering any representations, only those issues relating to the four 
licensing objectives should be considered and appropriate weight given to the 
importance and relevance of each representation.

Members should note that the applicant or persons making representations have 
the right of appeal against the decision made by the Sub-Committee.

Page 7

http://www.melton.gov.uk/downloads/file/3903/statement_of_licensing_policy_-_licensing_act_2003
http://www.melton.gov.uk/downloads/file/3903/statement_of_licensing_policy_-_licensing_act_2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003


3.10 Options available:

It is recommended that the Sub-Committee have regard to the application and any 
relevant representations and determine which of the following steps they consider 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  On considering the merits 
of the application before them, the options available to the Sub-Committee are:

g) Take no action;

h) Modify the conditions of the Premises Licence, by altering, omitting and or 

adding to them where relevant; 

i) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the Premises Licence; 

j) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor; 

k) Suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding three months;

l) Revoke the Premises Licence.

Where the Sub-Committee decide to take a step mentioned in (a) or (b) above, it 
may provide that the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period 
(not exceeding three months) as it may specify. 

Otherwise the modification of conditions or the exclusion of a licensable activity will 
be permanent.

4.0 Consultation and Feedback 

4.1 The consultation period commenced on Tuesday 10th September for 28 days ending 
on Tuesday 8th October 2019.
 

4.2 During this period, one further representation was made by the Licensing Authority 
itself (Appendix D). 

5.0 Next Steps

5.1 Once a decision is made by the Sub-Committee, all parties will be notified of the 
decision within 5 working days. 

5.2 The Sub-Committee should note that the applicant does have the right of appeal 
within 21 days of being notified of the decision  

6.0 Financial Implications

6.1 There are no financial or other resource implications.

Page 8



7.0 Legal and Governance Implications:

7.1 The Council is responsible for carrying out the licensing function under the Licensing 
Act 2003. The Act regulates the sale of alcohol, the provision of entertainment, the 
showing of film and late night refreshment

7.2 The Council has delegated its licensing function to its Licensing Committee, Sub 
Committees and Licensing Officers referred collectively to as the “Licensing 
Authority”.

7.3 Any decision must be taken following consideration of the representations received 
with a view to promoting the licensing objectives which are:

 Prevention of crime and disorder
 Public Safety
 Prevention of Public Nuisance
 Protection of Children from Harm

7.4 Any of the parties involved may, if they are unhappy with the outcome of this 
hearing, appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of being notified of the 
decision.

8.0 Equality and Safeguarding Implications:

8.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report. 

8.2 The safeguarding implications are outlined in the body of this report. 

9.0 Community Safety Implications:

9.1 The Community Safety implications are detailed in the body of the report and 
associated appendices.

10.0 Other Implications

10.1 The Statement of Licensing Policy was prepared in accordance with the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182 of the Act. The Council’s Policy was adopted by Council on the 12th 
December 2017. The Statement of the Licensing Policy is a live document, subject 
to review to meet the changing needs of the community, business circumstances 
and legislation.

Page 9



11.0 Risk & Mitigation:

11.1
A Very High

B High 1

C Significant 2, 3, 4

D Low

E Very Low

L
I
K
E
L
I
H
O
O
D F Almost

Impossible

Negligible
1

Marginal
2

Critical
3

Catastrop
hic
4

                IMPACT
Risk 
No

Risk Description

1 Local business who do pay correct tax affected by undercut 
pricing

2 Risk to public health if products are not produced under 
regulated conditions

3 Other licence conditions not being adhered to
4 It is important that due process is followed in considering this 

application to ensure that the correct decision is reached which 
could not be challenged on the grounds that the specified 
procedures have not been followed.

Background Papers:
None

Appendices
Appendix A – Premises Licence Effective 12.05.2019

Appendix B – Plan of Premises

Appendix C – Trading Standard Application for Review of Premises Licence

Appendix Ci Trading Standards supporting evidence – schedule of alcohol seized 

Appendix Cii – Trading Standards supporting evidence – photograph of some seized 
items

Page 10



Appendix Ciii – Trading Standards supporting evidence – pre- assessment proposal 
for excise duty 

Appendix Civ – Trading Standards supporting evidence – letter sent re unpaid 
excise duty

Appendix D – Licensing Authority Representation

Appendix E – Sub-Committee Review Application Decision – 21.08.19

Report Timeline:
Director Approval : 22.10.2019
Legal Approval : 21.10.19

Date of Review to make public (Exempt Reports only)
N/A

Report Author & Job Title
Sarah Flower – Licensing & Compliance Officer

: 01664 502502  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SU RVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

European Supermarket
36-42 Thorpe End, Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1RB.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT O F LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To Notes

J. Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premis es only
Daily 8:00am 11:00pm

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To Notes
Daily 8:00am 11:00pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WH ETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EM AIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

36-42 Thorpe End, Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1RB.European Market Melton Ltd

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NU MBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

11650669European Market Melton Ltd

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PR EMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Jasim Abdulla AMIN 74 Humberstone Gate, Leicester, LE1 3PL.

Part 1 - Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 1 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 13



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PE RSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVIS OR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPL Y OF ALCOHOL

LEIPRS4250Licence Number: Name of issuing Local Authority: Leicester

ANNEXES

MANDATORY CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL PREMISES LIC ENCES & CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES 
UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

Supply of Alcohol
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal 
licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 
personal licence.

Exhibition of Films

3. Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the 
admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.  

4. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of 
children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that body.

5. Where-

(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 

(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to 
the film in question, 

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing 
authority.

6. In this section “Children” - means persons aged under 18; and “Film classification body” means the person or 
persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to 
determine suitability of video works for classification).

Door Supervision

7. Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the 
premises to carry out a security activity, that licence must include a condition that each such individual must:

(a) Be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act 2001;

(b) Be entitled to carry out activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.

8. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 2 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 14



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

ANNEXES  continued ...

(a) In respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (c.12) 
(premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or

(b) In respect of premises in relation to:

(i) Any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used exclusively 
by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films or under 
a gaming licence), or

(ii) Any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under that 
Act).

9. For the purposes of this section:

(a) “Security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and which is 
licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act.

(b) Paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies in 
relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Age Verification
10. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is 

adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

11. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at 
the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

12. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such 
older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:

(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Permitted Price
13. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a 

price which is less than the permitted price.

14. For the purpose of this condition set out in paragraph 1:

(a) ''duty'' is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6);

(b) ''permitted price'' is the price found by applying the formula-

P = D + (D X V)

Where:

(i) P is the permitted price,

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 3 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 15



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

ANNEXES  continued ...

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax 
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) 'relevant person'' means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence;

(d) ''relevant person'' means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) ''value added tax'' means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994(7).

15. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a 
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

16. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the 
first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change 
to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place 
before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Irresponsible Drink Promotions (applicable to ‘on’ & ‘off’ sales)
17. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in 

any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  

18. In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially 
similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises:

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to:

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the 
premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise).

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or 
to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 4 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 16



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

ANNEXES  continued ...

licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and 
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the 
premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or 
to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is 
unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

19. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is 
reasonably available.

Alcoholic Drink Measures
20. The responsible person must ensure that:

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than 
alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers 
on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the 
customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

Conditions imposed by the Licensing Panel on 21st A ugust 2018

(a) That there be a personal licence holder present at all times when licensable activities are taking place

(b) That there be a refusal register kept at the premises and be produced on demand to  Licensing Officers  

and the Police and any other responsible body

Licensing objectives

General

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 5 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 17



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence MMA0262
European Supermarket

ANNEXES  continued ...

CCTV cameras will be installed in accordance with Leicestershire Constabulary requirements.

The prevention of crime and disorder

· CCTV

· No ID No Sale

· Refusal Register

· Training in responsible sales

Public Safety

Appropriate Health and Safety measures will be maintained

The prevention of public nuisance 

Be mindful of customers being of local area.

The protection of children from harm

CCTV camera outside the front to monitor regarding proxy purchases.

Active training in suitable ID and Challenge 25 Policy

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 6 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 18



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary MMA0262
European Supermarket

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SU RVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

European Supermarket
36-42 Thorpe End, Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1RB.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT O F LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To Notes

J. Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premise s only
Daily 8:00am 11:00pm

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To Notes
Daily 8:00am 11:00pm

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WH ETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LI CENCE

36-42 Thorpe End, Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire, LE13 1RB.European Market Melton Ltd

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NU MBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

11650669European Market Melton Ltd

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Jasim Abdulla AMIN

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS  RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

Unaccompanied children under the age of 16 are prohibited from premises that are exclusively or primarily used for
the supply and consumption of alcohol on the premises. In the case of any premises at which sales or supplies of

Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 7 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 19



THE LICENSING OFFICER         
 Melton Borough Council  
 Parkside, Station Approach
 Burton Street                   
 Melton Mowbray                       
 LE13 1GH
 Tel: 01664 502502
 E-Mail licensing@melton.gov.uk
 www.melton.gov.uk

Melton
Borough
Council

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary MMA0262
European Supermarket

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS  RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED  continued ...

alcohol are taking place at all, it is an offence for a child under 16 to be present there between the hours of midnight
and 5am unless accompanied by an adult.  

IMPORTANT NOTES
This licence has been produced under the Licensing Act 2003.
The possession of this licence does not guarantee t hat this licence is in force.
Its validity may be established by reference to the  Council's Licensing Officer.

Date Licence Granted 30/11/2015

Jim Worley
Assistant Director for Strategic Planning

Date: 21/05/2019

..............................................

 and Regulatory Services

Printed by LalPac on 12 Jun 2019 at 10:25 Page 8 of 8MMA0262/11957Page 20



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



 

Licensing Act 2003 

REPRESENTATION FORM 

Your name/organisation name/ name 
of body you represent 

Melton Borough Council - Licensing 

Address Melton Borough Council - Licensing, 
Parkside, Melton Mowbray LE13 1G 

Email address: sgreensmith@melton.gov.uk 

Contact Telephone number: 01664 502384 

 

Name of the premises you are making 
a representation about 

European Supermarket 

Address of the premises you are 
making a representation about. 

36 - 42 Thorpe End 
Melton Mowbray 
LE13 1RB 

 

Your representation must relate to one of the four Licensing Objectives  

(See note 2) 

Licensing Objective Yes 
Or 
No 

Please detail the evidence supporting your 
representation or the reason for your representation. 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

 
To prevent crime 
and disorder 

 
Y 

 
On Monday 9th September I attended the premises to 
post the Blue Notices on or near the premises to 
advertise that a review had been requested. 
 
I spoke to the only assistant Taha who was not a 
personal Licence holder and could not provide me with 
an incident / refusals log. 
 
I also asked to see the Premises licence, the assistant 
could not help me and looked bemused. 
 
After searching the shop floor I spotted just one sheet of 
the licence which was fixed with sticky tape to an RSJ 
just below the ceiling of the shop, I was unable to read it 
without a ladder. 
 
The Licensing act 2003 clearly states that  
 
‘The Premises Licence summary (or a certified copy) 
must be prominently displayed at or on the premises 

Page 45

mailto:sgreensmith@melton.gov.uk


concerned - every page should be displayed.’ 
 
The assistant when asked about the Incident & Refusals 
book said ‘Ask the Manager’ I said ‘Where is the 
manager?’ he then got a male on the phone who said he 
was the DPS Mr Jasim Amin who said he was too busy 
to come and speak with me but he would contact the 
council tomorrow. 
 
I gave a copy of the blue notice to Taha and instructed 
him to place it in the window. 
 
A further notice was attached to a post outside. 
 
The manager Amin did not attend the council offices. 
 
On 11th September 2019 the premises was again visited, 
the blue notice was not fixed to the window as requested 
and the assistant Taha got another person, Purza Bestun 
on the phone, he claimed to be the owner but was 
unaware of the conditions of the licence, he tried to 
translate to the assistant Taha, but couldn’t make him 
understand either. 
 
This time the blue notice was fixed to the glass door by 
the Licensing & Compliance officer. 
 
On 12th September 2019 the premises was again visited, 
the notices were still present and correct. 
 
I spoke to a different assistant Ahmadi who stated he did 
have a Personal licence with Leicester city council. 
He was unable to produce one to me, but later emailed 
me a copy of his personal licence LEIPRS3482 
 
He was still unable to produce a copy of the Incident / 
refusals log and stated that Mr Amin had instructed a 
solicitor who would be making contact with Licensing. 
 
On Tuesday 21st August 2018 a hearing of the Melton 
Mowbray Licensing sub committee to modify the 
conditions on the premises licence MMA0000: 
 

1) To remove the DPS namely Mr Mariwan Ali 
 

2) To modify the conditions on the premises licence 
as follows: 
 

a) That there be a Personal Licence holder 
present at all times when licensable 

Page 46



activities are taking place. 
 

b) That there be a refusals register kept at the 
premises and be produced on demand to 
Licensing Officers and the Police and any 
other responsible body. 

 
The fact is on three separate visits these conditions were 
not met shows total disregard for the licensing regime 
and objectives. 
 

 
Public safety 

 
Y 

 
On Monday 9th September I witnessed the assistant 
Taha sell a can of alcoholic lager to a male customer. 
 
This shows that the business will sell alcohol in breach of 
the conditions on their licence. 
 

 
To prevent public 
nuisance 

 
N 

 
 

 
To protect children 
from harm 

 
Y 

 
Three visits have been made to the premises since an 
official review was requested by Trading Standards, no 
Incident or refusals log was able to be produced showing 
if they have been complying with the conditions set by 
the Licensing sub-committee as a result of the last review 
in 2018 
 

 

Please suggest any conditions that 
could be added to the licence to 
remedy 
your representation or other 
suggestions you would like the 
Licensing Sub Committee to take into 
account (see note 2). 

 

 

Signed: 

 
 

Date: 2nd October 2019 Name:  
Simon Greensmith 
Melton Borough Council 
Licensing & Compliance 
officer 

 

Please see notes overleaf: 

 

Page 47



NOTES 
 
1. This form must be returned within the statutory period of 28 days from the date 
the application was displayed on the premises of the date given in the public 
notice in a local newspaper or other local publication. 
 
2. These can only relate to the four licensing objectives. 
 
3. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend a meeting of the 
Licensing Authority’s Committee and any subsequent appeal proceeding. If you 
do not attend, the Committee will consider any representations that you have 
made. 
 
4. Please return this form when completed to: 
 
The Licensing Officer 
Melton Borough Council 
Parkside 
Station Approach 
Melton Mowbray 
LE13 1GH 
 
Tel: 01664 502502 
Email: licensing@melton.gov.uk 

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52


	Agenda
	3 Declaration of Interest
	4 Licensing Act 2003: Application for Review of Premises Licence - European Market Melton Limited, 36-42 Thorpe End, Melton Mowbray, LE13 1RB
	Appendix A - Premises Licence Effective 12.05.2019
	Appendix B - Plan of Premises
	Appendix C - Licensing Review Application - Trading Standards
	Appendix Ci - Supporting Evidence - Schedule of the Amount of Alcohol Seizures
	Appendix Cii - Supporting Evidence - Photograph of some Seized Items
	Appendix Ciii - Supporting Evidence - Letter re Excise Duty
	Appendix Civ - Supporting Evidence - Letter: Payment for Unpaid Excise Duty
	Appendix D - Licensing Authority Representation
	Appendix E - Sub-Committee Review Application Decision - 21.08.2018


